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1. Name of Property
historic name
other names/site number lMarion Historic District

2. Location

street & number see continuation sheet ___Inot for publication N/A
city, town Southington, Cheshire |_] vicinity N/A
state Connecticut code CT county Hartford code 003,009  zip code 06444
New Haven 06410
- 3. Classification ‘
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
X private ] building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
[X] pubic-local [X district 46 .27 buildings
[CIpublic-State [ site 1 ' 8__sites
[ Jpublic-Federal [Istructure structures
[CJobject ‘ 2 objects
_ 49 35 Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register ___ 1

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that.this
nomination D request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opinion, the meets Ddoes not ational Register griteria. L—_I See continuation sheet.

P July 26, 1988

Date
"Director, Connecticut Historical Commission
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property D meets Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official o Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby, certify that this property is:

[Ttentered in the National Register. :é : :’c/ % § ) -
[ see continuation sheet. M\ ' /2 2/ éy
/ v [¥

[Jdetermined eligible for the National
Register. [_] See continuation sheet.

[ determined not eligible for the (
National Register.

[Iremoved from the National Register.
Dother, (explain:) i

()
()% signature of the Keeper Date of Action
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Location (read across)

Burritt Street: 697

Marion Avenue: Lot 82 1038 1070-74

(Southington) 1073 1077 1084
1089 Lot 69 1103
1108 1123 1124
1133 1134 1135
Lot 49 1154 1157 -
1166 1167 1177
Lot 30 1210 1215
1218 1226 1231
1237 1264 1273
1276 1290 1293
Lot 18 1305 Lot 10
1316 1325-27 1334
1337 1346 1347
1354-56 1359 1371-73
1401-03 1422-23 Lot 2
1433

Marion Avenue: 1896 1897

(Cheshire)

Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike 2283 2309 2321
2343 2344



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC/single dwelling DOMESTIC/single dwelling
AGRICULTURE/agricultural field DOMESTIC/secondary structure

AGRICULTURE/agricultural outbuilding

INDUSTRY/manufacturing facility

7. Description

Architectural Classification Materials (enter categories from instructions)
(enter categories from instructions)

foundation stone
Greek Revival walls wegtherboard
Italianate shingle
Federal roof asphalt

other wood

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

The Marion Historic District is a historic residential community located along Marion
Avenue in the southwest corner of the Town of Southington; it also includes two
buildings in the Town of Cheshire. The district comprises approximately 38 acres and
82 resources, There are 34 primary buildings, 12 outbuildings, and one site that
contribute to the historical and architectural significance of the district, and
together these comprise 57% of the district's total resources.

Of the 34 primary contributing buildings, 6 date from the 18th century, 23 from the
19th century, and 5 from the 20th century. Their breakdown by styles is Colonial q,
Georgian 2, Federal Y4, Greek Revival 9, Italianate 4, Queen Anne 1, 19th-century
vernacular 5, Colonial Revival 3, American Four-Square 1, and Bungalow 1.

The activity center of the district is the intersection of Marion Avenue and the
Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike, the location of the Marion post office and firehouse
(Photograph 1). Buildings within the district are well spaced from one another along
tree-lined highways. Scattered throughout the district are newer homes, built between
World War II and the present, on what was formerly farmland (Photograph 2). These are
generally integrated with the historic streetscape in scale, setback, and style. Many
of the houses in the district stand on long deep lots of several acres, which has
preserved the rural ambiance of the district, and a few houses still retain their
19th-century barns. One operating farm, a small tree farm, remains at 1371 Marion
Avenue.

Perhaps the oldest house in the district to retain its original form is the Miles Upson
house, 1316 Marion Avenue (Photograph 3).(1) The one-story house is unusual for the
period because its central entrance is located on the gable end, which faces the
street. On its south side is a recessed porch sided with wide beaded vertical boards
and facing a well. Other examples of colonial architecture in the district include
1070, 1433, and 1896 Marion Avenue, all small simple one-story structures. The
two-story James Porter House, 1325 Marion Avenue (Photograph 2), and the Harman
Merriman House, 1084 Marion Avenue (Photograph 4), share the center-hall plan of the
Georgian style. The Merriman house gained a number of Italianate and Stick-style
additions in the 19th-century, including an elaborate two-story front porch with
quatrefoil frieze, two-story bay windows, and radial struts in the gables,

Adamesque detailing appears on two Federal style houses, 1896 Marion Avenue and the
Philo Barnes House at 1177 Marion Avenue (Photograph 5). The Barnes House has bands of
alternating horizontal and vertical ellipses running above the windows and door and as
a frieze under the eaves. On 1896 Marion Avenue, a delicate dentil course runs above
the second-floor windows, and similar detailing marks the frieze board and the cornice

(] see continuation sheet
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of the gable pediment. There is an elliptical window in its tympanum.

Two later Federal houses show some influence of the Greek Revival style. The massing,
window caps, and absence of corner pilasters of 2309 Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike
(Photograph 6) are characteristic of the Federal style, while its end-gable pediment
and front entrance flanked by pilasters that support an entablature are Greek Revival
features. Next door, 2283 Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike has similar Greek Revival
detailing surrounding its recessed entrance.

The Greek Revival style is represented in the greatest number of houses in the
district, 9. These houses generally have received additions or have been covered in
aluminum siding, but are, nonetheless, clear examples of their style.

Most of the Greek Revival houses in the district are two-story, three-bay, temple-form
clapboard structures, some with full gable pediments, such as the Levi B. Frost House
at 1089 Marion -Avenue (Photograph 14), others with simple gable end returns, as in 1352
Marion Avenue. One of the earliest examples of the style may be 2344 Meriden-Waterbury
Turnpike, with its entrance on the long side and a gable pediment facing the street.

An unusual Greek Revival design is the one-story house at 697 Burritt Street
(Photograph 7), which has six bays along its side and is built into the side of a

hill. Although cited by the WPA Census as built in 1805, its 6-over-6 windows, gable
end returns, and original doorway (located at the fourth bay and since removed) with
pilasters and entablature are typical Greek Revival features.

The DeWitt Upson House at 1401 Marion Avenue is another variation of the Greek Revival
temple form, with a two-bay facade and wide paneled corner boards supporting plain
entablatures, One-story porches to each side, which provide access to the doors, have
their precedent in the flanking wings of a Roman Doric temple.

The district has four fine examples of the Italianate style. One of the best is the
James Upson House at 1422 Marion Avenue (Photograph 8). The house's hipped roof is
extremely shallow, with wide eaves overhanging a wide frieze with rectangular attic
windows and a wrap-around porch with square posts, molded capitals, and sawn brackets.
The Ira Frost House, 1070 Marion Avenue (Photograph 16), is an L-shaped version of the
same design. - A more unusual Italianate house is the Sutliff House at 1273 Marion
Avenue (Photograph 9), square in plan with a hipped roof with wide eaves, a three-bay
facade, and a large elliptical window over its central doorway. The house has a stark
appearance that may be symptomatic of unknown alterations over its history. A brick
version of the Italianate style in its later years is 1237 Marion Avenue (Photograph
1), built originally as a church. Now a firehouse, the building has lost its
second-floor entrance but retains its tall arched windows, roof brackets, and brick
dentiling. The bank of earth into which it was built has been removed to provide
at-grade access to the basement level for fire trucks.

The district has one fine Queen Anne house, located at 1166 Marion Avenue (Photograph
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10). The house's irregular massing, steeply pitched roof, and three-story tower with
pyramidal roof are typical of the style. Its barn is also intact.

The Colonial Revival style gained popularity in the district in the 1930s. The house
at 1305 Marion Avenue (Photograph 11) is similar to a New England Colonial house in its
design and has an off-center chimney, steeply pitched gable roof, and a central
entrance with pilasters and sidelights. A more vernacular example of the early
twentieth~century period is the Marion Schoolhouse, 1135 Marion Avenue (Photograph 19),
a long one=-story building with a row of windows running across its facade.

The district has one industrial building, the former L.B. Frost and Sons bolt factory
at 1108 Marion Avenue (Photograph 12). Now covered in aluminum siding, the building is
a two-story plain rectangular block with 8 x 3 bays. It once was connected to a long
building which ran along Judd Brook (now Humiston Brook) to its north.

The contributing site in the district is Lot 82 on Marion Avenue, a small 25' x 52!
park with a monument commemorating General Jean Baptiste Rochambeau's encampment on the
site ("French Hill") in 1781 (Photograph 13). A 40" x 41" bronze plaque of Rochambeau
is mounted on a granite slab, which replaced, in 1971, the 7' x 9' concrete die on
which the plaque was originally mounted in 1912. To the rear of the park is a marble
block commemorating Southington men who fought in the Civil War.

End Notes

(1) This building is cited by the WPA Census of 0ld Buildings as dating from 1790.

Inventory

C or NC in the second column indicates whether the structure/site is considered to be
_Contributing or Non-Contributing to the historical and architectural significance of the
district. Resources not substantial in size or scale are listed but not classified or
enumerated in Contributing and Non-Contributing counts. The source of the date given in
the third column is generally indicated by the code: A = Assessor's record; V = visual
approximation; S = Southington land records; WPA = WPA Census of Old Buildings.

Burritt Street

697 c c. 1840 v Greek Revival house, ell addition, original doorway
' on west facade removed. WPA Census states house built in
1805 by Olcott Merriman.
NC ec. 1970 \' Combination garage/shed.

c. 1960 v Playhouse,
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Marion Avenue - Southington

Lot 82

1038
1070-74

1073

1077
1084

1089

Lot 69

1108

1103

1123

1124

1133

c

c

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

NC

1912 S
1912(inscribed)
c. 1912 Vv
1975 v
c. 1860 c
c. 1845 '
c. 1960 v
c. 1793 A
c. 1840 v
19th cent. V
c. 1975 v
c. 1842 '
e, 1940 A
c. 1950 A
1948 A

Small park with two monuments.

Monument to Rochambeau; James Edward Kelley, sculptor.
Marble monument commemorating local Civil War soldiers.
Modern Cape house,

IRA FROST HOUSE. Italianate house.

LEWIS FRONT HOUSE. Greek Revival house, altered door,
aluminum siding.

Garage.
Driveway providing access to rear lot.

HARMON MERRIMAN HOUSE. Georgian house with Italianate and
Stick-style alterations, synthetic siding.

LEVI B. FROST HOUSE. Greek Revival house, window
alterations.

Barn/garage.
Swimming pool.
Driveway providing access to rear lot.

L.B. FROST AND SON, Vernacular building originally used
as bolt factory; aluminum siding.

2 sheds.
Modern house,

Vacant land fronting modern subdivision to far rear of
parcel.

Modern house.,

Vacant land fronting modern subdivision to far rear of
parcel,
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1134 NC 1945 A Modern house,
c. 1980 ) Shed.
1135 C c. 1910 v Early 20th century schoolhouse, aluminum siding.
Lot 49 NC c. 1970 v Modern house.
1154 C 1927 A Bungalow house.
‘7 c 1927 A Barn.
1157 NC 1954 A Ranch-style house.
1166 C c. 1875 v LESTER BEECHER HOUSE. Queen Anne house, aluminum siding.
C c. 1875 v Barn.
1167 NC 1955 A Ranch-style house.
e. 1970 v Shed.
M77 c 1795 A PHILO BARNES HOUSE. Federal house with added ell.
c 1920 A Cement block garage.
c 1920 A Garage.
1920 A Shed.
_ Lét 30 NC Vacant land.
1210 c c. 1800 v Colonial house with added dormer and rear ell.
C c. 1930 V  Garage.
NC 1978 A Summer house.
1215 NC c. 1940 v Cape house.
| NC c. 1940 ' Garage.

c. 1980 ) Shed.

1218 NC 1922 A Early 20th-century house, additions to front, rear.
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NC 1958 A Garage.

1226 c c. 1910 v American Four-Square house, added dormers,
aluminum siding.

1950 A Shed.
1231 NC 1946 A Modern store.
1237 c 1874 S MARION CHAPEL. Italianate firehouse built originally as a
Vchurch, original second-floor entrance removed.
1264 C ¢, 1840 s Greek Revival house, added window, porch and garage.
1273 c c. 1851 S LOUIS SUTLIFF HOUSE. Italianate house, added portico and

rear addition.
NC c. 1981 A Garage.

19th cent. V Shed.

1276 € 1932 A Colonial Revival house.
C c. 1932 vV Garage.
f290 c 1862 | A BENNETT LEWIS HOUSE. L-shaped mid 19th-century house,
added porch, sunporch.
c c. 1865 v Barn or workshop, asphalt shingles.
1966 A Swimming pool with small bathhouse.
1293 c c. 1830 v Greek Revival house, Colonial Revival additions to
rear and sides, front door moved.
Lot 18 NC Vacant land.
1305 c 1932 A Colonial Revival house designed by J. Frederick Kelly.
. NC c. 1980 v Garage.
1986 A Swimming pool.

Lot 10 NC Vacant land.
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1316 C 1790 WPA MILES UPSON HOUSE. Colonial house, new door surround,

1970 v Shed.
1325-27 C c. 1800 \' JAMES PORTER HOUSE. Colonial house, original fenestration
changed on first floor, chimney removed.
NC ec. 1950 v Garage.
1334 NC 1968 A Ranch-style house.
1337 NC 1946 A Colonial Revival house, added garage.
- 1965 A Shed.
1346 NC c. 1985 v Modern brick house.
1347 NC 1945 A Cape house.
1354-56 C c. 1845 v Greek Revival house, ell and portico added, aluminum
siding, new sash.
NC c. 1950 v Garage.
1359 NC 1968 A Ranch~-style house.
1371-=73 C c. 1852 S Greek Revival house, late-Victorian wraparound porch

added, aluminum siding.

C 19th cent, V Barn,

NC e. 1930 s Barn.

11401-03 c c. 1848 S DEWITT UPSON HOUSE. Gfeek Revival house, aluminum siding.
NC c. 1960 A Garage.

1422-23 C c. 1865 v JAMES UPSON HOUSE, Italianate house,
C 19th cent. V Former tinner's shop, now a garage.

‘Lot 2 NC Vacant land.
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1433 o c. 1780 A 1-story Colonial house (rear section), Greek Revival
front wing, added porch, north addition.

Marion Ave,- Cheshire

1896 C c. 1770 A PERRY LANGDON HOUSE. Colonial house, sash replaced, added
chimney, portico, asbestos siding.

c 19th cent., V Barn.

1897 c c. 1813 A Federal house, altered doorway, porch and ell added,
aluminum siding.

Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike

2283 C 1823 A Federal house, added dormer, aluminum siding, sunporch,
2309 C 1820 A Federal house, ell addition.
NC 1950 A Garage.
2321 c 1848 A Mid-19th century house, now post office, addition across
front.
C c. 1920 ) Cement-block garége.
2343 c 1872 A Mid-19th century house, added portico.
c c. 1920 v Garage.
23&4 c c. 1830 \' NEWELL HOUSE. Greek Revival house, additions, aluminum

siding.
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8. Statement of Significance j
Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

[nationally ~ [X]statewide [ _Jlocally

Applicable National Register Criteria [ JA [ 18 [XJc []p

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA []B8 [Jc [o [Je [JF [Je n/aA

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
~Architecture 1770-1842 N/A
1842-1875 N/A
1914-1938 N/A

Cultyral Affiliation
N/A

Significant Person itect/Bui
o ARyl

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

The architecture of the Marion Historic District is significant as a collection of
well-preserved buildings dating from the 18th, 19th, and early 20th centuries which
together reflect the historical development of the Marion community of Southington. .
Particularly noteworthy within the district are several fine Federal, Greek Revival,
and Italianate residences.

Historlical Context

Three periods in the development of the Marion area of Southington are represented by
the district's architecture: early agricultural development, 1770-1842; 19th-century
industrial activity and community growth, 1842-1900; and early suburban growth,
1914-1938.

The lands of the Marion area were first surveyed and divided in 1739. At that time
Southington was part of Farmington, and the Marion area was known as "Little Plain," an
area which swept from a bluff, later called "French Hill," south to the Cheshire line
(then south of its present location). The first settlers of the area included families
whose names have long been prominent in Marion's history, including Barnes, Upson,
Cowles, Langdon, and Newell.

The soil of Southington was sandy and generally not well adapted to intensive farming
except for the lands skirting the mountains. As Little Plain lay just east of a high
ridge, several farms were established there in the 18th century along the road now
called Marion Avenue, a north-south route from Bristol to New Haven. In 1813, the
Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike was completed and ran east to west through the center of the
area.

One large landowner, Asa Barnes, established a tavern in his home at 1089 Marion Avenue
around 1765 and entertained officers of the Revolutionary War troops of General Jean
Baptiste Rochambeau, who were camped nearby on French Hill in 1781. Much of the house
burned in 1836, was rebuilt in the Greek Revival style by Levi B, Frost, and is listed
individually on the National Register of Historic Places (Photograph 14). A monument
commemorating Rochambeau's encampment was erected nearby on French Hill in

[ESee continuation sheet
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1912 by the American Irish Historical Society, which conveyed the site, located at 1038 .
Marion Avenue, to the Town of Southington in 1927 (Photograph 13).

Growth in the district, gradual during the first half of the 19th century, was due in
large part to families dividing their lands among their many children. Levi B. Frost
had four sons, Reuben, Ira, Lewis, and Levi D., all of whom lived in proximity to one
another at 1070, 1073, 1084, and 1089 Marion Avenue. The Upson family owned hundreds
of acres south of the Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike and is responsible for several of the
houses in the district, including 1897, 1422, 1401, 1316, and 1273 Marion Avenue. One
long-time resident, Asahel Upson (1783-1867) had nine sons, some of whom ran a business
‘in Marion, Alabama, as did the son of Perry Langdon, an Upson neighbor. = When the
district was to have its first post office in the mid-19th century, the area was named
Marion in their honor.

The growth was also due in part to the development of small industries in the area.
1108 Marion Avenue is the site of the one of the original factory buildings of L.B.
Frost and Son, a manufacturer of carriage bolts and nuts (Photograph 12). Levi B.
Frost got his start as a blacksmith, and embarked in the bolt business on the site in
1842, Seven years later, he bought out the bolt business begun by Micah Rugg of
Marion, who invented bolt cutting machines which revolutionized the carriage bolt
industry. In 1866, L.B. Frost's business passed on to his son, Levi D., who
manufactured carriages and wagons at the site in addition to bolts.

The cornerstone for the Marion Chapel at 1237 Marion Avenue was laid in 1874 by the
Marion Chapel Association, a group of neighbors who built the church to avoid the long
travel to established churches (Photograph 1). From the time of its completion until
after the turn of the century, building activity in the district was sparse.

In 1914, a trolley line was laid through Marion from Waterbury to Southington and
opened the area to its first suburban development. The automobile replaced the
trolley for travel by the 1930s, and additional suburban residences were built in the
district at that time. Suburban growth in the district has continued steadily to the
present, with a marked increase in recent years.

Architectural Significance

The Marion Historic District is one of Southington's best collections of rural historic
architecture of the late 18th and early and mid-19th centuries. The district has
experienced two recent decades of intense growth and development in the area, but most
of its original buildings have been left intact, and new infill of generally modest
houses has not interupted the rhythm of the streetscape in proportion or setback.

Many of the earliest houses surviving in the district were built as small, relatively
simple structures, and remain so. One of the best preserved is the Miles Upson House,
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1316 Marion Avenue (Photograph 3), which is particularly noteworthy as the only example
in Southington of a Colonial house with its unusual gable-end plan and recessed porch.
The other Colonial houses in the distriect, such as 1433 and 1896 Marion Avenue, have
had subsequent additions but are signficant as survivors from Marion's early period.

‘Among the district's Federal houses, two are noteworthy for the fine Adamesque
detailing retained along their friezes and window lintels, 1897 Marion Avenue and 1177
Marion Avenue (Photograph 5). The latter has been carefully rehabilitated after
undergoing several unsympathetic alterations earlier in this century.

‘The Greek Revival and Italianate styles were in fashion during the district's period of
greatest growth, 1840-1875. Fine houses in these styles collectively form the
district's most architecturally significant resource. The Levi B. Frost House at 1089
Marion Avenue (Photograph 14) is a well-preserved house typical of many of the Greek
Revival residences in the distriect. It is characterized by a full gable pediment,
3-bay facade, and left entrance surrounded by pilasters and entablature. Juxtaposed
against the formal Greek Revival houses are the more fanciful Italianate residences.
Two homes with excellent integrity in the style are the James Upson House, 1422 Marion
Avenue (Photograph 8), and the Ira Frost House, 1070 Marion Avenue (Photograph 16),
both with shallow hipped roofs, wide eaves, and wrap-around porches. An Italianate
house design not found elsewhere in Southington is the Louis Sutliff House, 1273 Marion
Avenue (Photograph 9), with its large elliptical window at the second-floor level.

Although some alterations were made when it was converted to a firehouse, the Marion
Chapel, 1237 Marion Avenue (Photograph 1), is a good example of the Italianate style
applied to ecclesiastical architecture.

The district's architecture also reflects the onset of new stylistic influences in the
area, For example, 2283 and 2309 Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike, both built in the 1820s,
show characteristics of both the Federal style and the emerging Greek Revival style.
The Greek Revival-style Lewis Frost House, 1073 Marion Avenue, has the broad eaves of
the emerging Italianate style. Likewise, the DeWitt Upson House, built in 1848 at

1401 Marion Avenue, displays classic Greek Revival features but the tall narrow profile
and side entrances common to Italianate houses.

While the district has only one house built in the Queen Anne style, 1166 Marion Avenue
{Photograph 10), it is an excellent example of the style and adds to the district's
stylistic variety. Its roof peaks and square tower are echoed in the design of its
large barn, contemporary with the house, with its multiple gables and square pointed
monitor. Both house and barn are well preserved.

The Harmon Merriman House, 1084 Marion Avenue (Photograph 4), exemplifies the trend in
the Victorian era to embellish older houses with modern porches and detailing. Many of
these additions, like those on the Merriman House, have become significant in their own
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right(1). Another example is 1371 Marion Avenue, a formal Greek Revival house
enlivened with a late 19th-century wraparound porch.

The district contains good examples of 20th-century architectural styles which emerged
as Marion began to function as a suburb, among these 1154 Marion Avenue (Photograph
‘17), a Bungalow, and 1226 Marion Avenue, an American Four-Square. Two well-preserved
Colonial Revival residences are 1276 Marion Avenue (Photograph 18) and 1305 Marion
‘Avenue (Photograph 11). The latter is important as a design of Kelly and Kelly, in
which J. Frederick Kelly was a partner. Kelly was Connecticut's leading
architect/scholar of Colonial architecture and author of Early

Domestic Architecture of Connecticut.

The L.B. Frost and Son factory at 1008 Marion Avenue is significant as one of the last
surviving examples of known industrial architecture in the district. Still visible are
traces of the stone walls lining Humiston Brook (formerly Judd Brook) in the area where
-the company dammed the brook for power. A former tinner's shop remains behind the
James Upson house at 1422 Marion Avenue, James Upson's grandfather started a small
business making tin utensils in the early 19th century,

The site of Rochambeau's encampment, now marked by a small park just north of 1038
Marion Avenue, is significant both for its connections to the historic events which
took place there and for the design of the monument standing at its center (Photograph
13). The monument's bronze plaque was sculpted in 1912 by James Edward Kelley.
Kelley, born in 1855, studied at the National Academy of Design and became an
illustrator for such magazines as Scribner's, St. Nicholas, and Harper's, but after
1881 devoted himself exclusively to sculpture. Among his other works related to
military history are the Monmouth Battle Monument, 1885, and the 6th Calvalry Monument
at Gettysburg, 1890.

End Notes

(1) The Italianate and Stick-style additions to the Merriman House were presumably made
by Levi D. Frost when he purchased the house from his father in 1860.
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Verbal Boundary Description

The boundary of the district is shown by dotted line on the sketch map,
compiled from town assessor's maps, drawn at scale of 1'" = 400'.
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The boundary is drawn to encompass the contributing architectural resources
described, and associated streetscape. Property lines of properties are
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to exclude rear fields, in the case of deep parcels.
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Photographs

All photographs are of properties within the Marion Historic District and were taken in
Southington, Connecticut, by Janice L. Elliott in December, 1987, unless otherwise
noted. Negatives for all photographs are on file with the Connecticut Historical
Commission.

Photo Property Name ' Additional
* Number and Address View Information
1 Marion Post Office, Firehouse Northwest

2321 Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike
1237 Marion Avenue

2 James Porter House (right) Northwest Noncontributing house on
1337, 1325 Marion Avenue left built in 1946
3 Miles Upson House Northeast

1316 Marion Avenue

-y Harmon Merriman House Northeast
1084 Marion Avenue

-5 Philo Barnes House Northwest
1177 Marion Avenue

6 2309 Meriden-Waterbury Turnpike East
7 697 Burritt Street East
8 James Upson House Northeast

1422 Marion Avenue

9 Louis Sutliff House (right) Southwest
1273 Marion Avenue

10 Lester Beecher House and barn East
1166 Marion Avenue

11 1305 Marion Avenue West

12 L.B. Frost and Sons factory East
1108 Marion Avenue
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13 Rochambeau Monument East
Lot 82 (Marion Avenue)

14 L.B. Frost House Northwest
1089 Marion Avenue

15 1290 Marion Avenue Northeast

16 Ira Frost, Harmon Merriman Houses Southeast

1070, 1084 Marion Avenue

a7 1154 Marion Avenue Northeast
18 1276, 1290 Marion Avenue Southeast
19 Marion Schoolhouse West

1135 Marion Avenue



